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          1  YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Good afternoon.

          3  This is a meeting on the Committee on Youth Services

          4  of the New York City Council. These are our

          5  Preliminary Budget Hearings on Fiscal 2000. My name

          6  is Ken Fisher, Council Member from Brooklyn. We are

          7  joined by Council Members Lopez, Espada, Stabile,

          8  Perkins, Cruz, Clarke and Lasher, as well as members

          9  of our staff, augmented by the Council's Finance

         10  Committee staff.

         11                 Before turning to the substance of

         12  our meeting, two announcements that I wanted to

         13  make. The first, that the Committee will hold a

         14  hearing on April 9th, 1999, regarding the recent

         15  report of the Citizens Committee for Children

         16  regarding the conditions of young people in New York

         17  City today, at 10:00 a.m., in the Council Chambers.

         18                 Secondly, I wanted to announce that

         19  our series of Youth Speakouts, which has been

         20  tremendously successful to this date will continue

         21  on April 15th at 5:00 p.m. at New Dorp High School

         22  in Staten Island, and members will be advised about

         23  travel arrangements before then.

         24                 So the next two hearings we have

         25  scheduled are the Citizens Committee for Children,
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          2  April 9, and our Youth Speakout on Staten Island,

          3  April 15th.

          4                 We have also been joined by Council

          5  Member Robinson, the Chair of our Subcommittee on

          6  Juvenile Justice. That is announcement number one.

          7                 Announcement number two is that as I

          8  think most people know by now, Commissioner

          9  Oesterreich will be moving to another appointment

         10  beginning shortly, and on behalf of myself, members

         11  of the Committee, we wanted to thank you for your

         12  cooperation during your tenure at the Department of

         13  Youth Services and we look forward to working with

         14  you in your new capacity and I believe you will have

         15  some additional comments to make about that when you

         16  get into your remarks.

         17                 And having said those nice things,

         18  let me now turn to the matter at hand, which is the

         19  Mayor's Financial Plan in the area of youth services

         20  and tell you, Commissioner, that I can't wait to

         21  hear your testimony, because, quite frankly, I can't

         22  think of a blessed reason why in the time of

         23  financial surplus, the Mayor would propose to cut

         24  $19 million out of the Youth Services' budget,

         25  particularly juxtaposed with plans to hire 1,500
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          2  additional police officers at the cost of $26

          3  million.

          4                 So, most of the cuts are proposed to

          5  be out of delinquency prevention programs. I think

          6  it is the feeling of most of the members of the

          7  Council that we would rather keep kids from getting

          8  into trouble by providing them with safe

          9  alternatives, rather than hiring more cops to lock

         10  them up in case they do get into trouble.

         11                 So, I don't -- I can't wait to find

         12  out what the rationale is for these cuts, and,

         13  therefore, without further ado, Commissioner, will

         14  you identify yourself for the record, you can make

         15  your presentation.

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Good

         17  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, Honorable members of the

         18  City Council. My name is Martin Oesterreich, I am

         19  the Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         20  Youth and Community Development until approximately

         21  11:59 Sunday night at which point the Acting

         22  Commissioner of the Agency, while a search process

         23  is going to be engaged in, will be Deputy

         24  Commissioner Violet Mitchell. I think most of you

         25  are familiar with Deputy Commissioner Mitchell, she
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          2  has served in an acting capacity in the past, and I

          3  am sure you will place your full trust and

          4  confidence in her, as I have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And we wish you

          6  well.

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Which is a

          8  sentiment that I hardly concur in.

          9                 To my left is Deputy Commissioner

         10  Carlton Mitchell, who is in charge of the Community

         11  Services area of the Department. Before, and I will

         12  have some additional words to say about my tenure at

         13  this conclusion of this prepared testimony, we have

         14  prepared testimony that has been provided to the

         15  members, and please allow me to read that and we

         16  will have, I believe, sufficient time to engage in

         17  any questions, answer all of your questions, or

         18  other concerns.

         19                 Good afternoon. I am happy to be here

         20  to report on the Department of Youth and Community

         21  Development. FY '98 was a year of great

         22  accomplishment for this Department. We expanded

         23  programs like the beacons, created new programs,

         24  such as Citizenship NYC and improved efficiency

         25  through better technology and additional staff
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          2  training.

          3                 In Fiscal 1998, through 350

          4  community-based organizations in 44 neighborhood

          5  development areas, my agency, through the Community

          6  Service Block Grant, provide services to over 76,000

          7  individuals, including youth, seniors, children and

          8  families.

          9                 In addition, our 56 literacy programs

         10  assisted 9,200 New Yorkers in their efforts to lead

         11  more productive lives.

         12                 Also, in Fiscal 1998 our youth

         13  programs served over 950,000 youth by operating

         14  programs such as the beacons, the Safe Streets -

         15  Safe City initiatives, which include Neighborhood

         16  Youth Alliance, the Youth Link Program, the Street

         17  Outreach Program, as well as our Youth Line.

         18                 The Neighborhood Youth Alliance

         19  offered leadership training for 6,800 youth. Youth

         20  Link provided precinct level community services,

         21  counseling and drug intervention and referral for

         22  9,100 youth, and in Fiscal 1998 our Street Outreach

         23  Program, which offers peer counseling, mediation,

         24  human values training and referrals made contact

         25  with 16,000 youth in parks, playgrounds and on City
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          2  streets and corners.

          3                 Our Youth Line received a total of

          4  80,000 calls during the past fiscal year, and in

          5  addition, our very successful beacon programs

          6  provided services to 110,000 young people throughout

          7  the City last year.

          8                 Of course one of our greatest

          9  accomplishments with the cooperation of the City

         10  Council, I am happy to note, was a near doubling of

         11  our beacon school system, from 39 schools to 75

         12  active schools.

         13                 We now have a safe haven for our

         14  children in every neighborhood of our City, and

         15  although we spent a great deal of time getting these

         16  beacons up and running, we also made the time to

         17  create a new beacon manual, a program manual, which

         18  very clearly defines our rules, our expectations and

         19  philosophies regarding this particular initiative.

         20                 In many sections of that manual we

         21  share helpful suggestions for addressing beacon

         22  requirements and challenges we put on the

         23  contractors, and we feel that we will be

         24  particularly helpful to new directors as we expand

         25  this system, to new directors and to staff who need
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          2  to familiarize themselves with the model, and it

          3  will also be, we believe, equally helpful to veteran

          4  directors, as it formalizes and crystalizes many of

          5  DYCD's policies and procedures.

          6                 The manual includes sections that

          7  describe the model itself, the structure, DYCD

          8  guidelines and specific beacon operating

          9  administrative requirements.

         10                 I should also point out another major

         11  step forward for these kind of after school

         12  collaborations that this here Chancellor Rudy Crew

         13  issued a systemwide memorandum, a Chancellor's

         14  letter, that highlights the advantages of working

         15  with community-based organizations to both

         16  principals and superintendents, and it prominently

         17  featured our beacon program as a lead example of

         18  these community-based collaboratives.

         19                 I am also pleased to announce that we

         20  have available right now a request for funding

         21  proposals for an innovative new program to test

         22  methodologies to reduce violence among our young

         23  people. It is called the Violence Intervention and

         24  Prevention RFP. We are seeking to fund up to 11

         25  organizations to provide services to youth, ages 9
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          2  to 21, residing throughout the City, who may be

          3  affected by violence.

          4                 The goals of this initiative are to

          5  provide youth with programs geared towards helping

          6  them develop constructive peer relationship skills

          7  to be used as alternatives to violence, provide them

          8  with conflict resolution and mediation skills to

          9  enable them to avoid and settle disagreements, help

         10  them handle their emotions without resorting to

         11  physical or verbal abuse, especially with peers, and

         12  strengthening family relationships and reinforcing

         13  community values through community service.

         14                 They are going to be two different

         15  foci for this initiative, a Citywide violence

         16  prevention education model, and a neighborhood-based

         17  violence intervention model.

         18                 We are going to be extremely

         19  interested to see what innovative new strategies

         20  come forth out of this solicitation, and after a

         21  program effectiveness evaluation we intend to apply

         22  successful strategies and programs for the rest of

         23  our youth-serving portfolios.

         24                 Another new and exciting initiative

         25  that we are embarking upon with the assistance of
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          2  the City Council Committee on Youth Services is the

          3  New American Youth Initiative. There is a consensus

          4  among service professionals that do the language and

          5  cultural barriers, New American Youth, recent

          6  immigrant youth, have a variety of needs whether it

          7  is culturally appropriate activity, institutional

          8  support, direct mental health services or assistance

          9  in adaptation, integration into our larger society.

         10  There has also been identified a tremendous need for

         11  educational, recreational, social and mental health

         12  programs for the New American teen population.

         13                 Programs are expected to bring youth

         14  from diverse ethnic backgrounds together while some

         15  will be geared towards providing direct services

         16  within each ethnic community.

         17                 Others may be geared towards

         18  communicating with the public at large the barriers

         19  confronted by and the needs of immigrant youth. The

         20  New American Youth Initiative will attempt to

         21  provide both the context and a multiplicity of

         22  services in which immigrant youth teens can make

         23  choices about services that they need and make sure

         24  that those services are available.

         25                 I am very happy to report a
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          2  continuation of this particular vain that after 18

          3  months of operation Citizenship New York City has

          4  achieved a whole host of positive results. Since its

          5  inception a total of 21,711 appointments have been

          6  scheduled in our centers, 6,700 people have been

          7  referred to community-based organizations for

          8  services ranging from legal assistance, to ESR

          9  classes, to Medicaid assistance, 741 visits have

         10  been made to home-bound clients and CYNC has now

         11  filed nearly 12,000 applications to naturalize with

         12  the Immigration and Naturalization Service.

         13                 In September of 1998, CNYC began

         14  making monthly meetings to Staten Island to provide

         15  assistance at Borough Hall. We are publicizing our

         16  outreach efforts by distributing flyers to community

         17  organizations and leaders on Staten Island, as well

         18  as the local press.

         19                 Also, in November, we began providing

         20  assistance to Far Rockaway residents where we share

         21  an office with the Jewish Community Council of the

         22  Rockaway Peninsula at 1011 Namoke Street.

         23                 This project has been very, very

         24  successful and keeps on going as a grand success.

         25                 A continuing concern for this
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          2  Committee and for other community leaders has been

          3  summer employment for young people.

          4                 I am happy to report that the Youth

          5  Empowerment Services Commission, the YES Commission,

          6  final tally for 1998 is finally complete.

          7                 The YES Commission separates its

          8  employment efforts into three different time frames

          9  - January through May of 1998, spring; June through

         10  August, which is the full summer period, and then

         11  again September through December, which we consider

         12  to be the fall period.

         13                 During the spring, as part of the

         14  lead-in to our summer initiative there were

         15  approximately 60 jobs. In the summer of 1998, there

         16  were a total of 57,414 jobs, consisting of 47,433

         17  jobs in the public sector and 9,981 jobs in the

         18  private sector.

         19                 This fall, there has been a total of

         20  106 jobs. The total number of jobs, therefore, for

         21  1998 was 57,570. An additional 100 jobs are

         22  projected for the spring of 1999.

         23                 We have made plans to expand the

         24  campaign in an attempt to secure a greater number of

         25  private sector opportunities for not only the summer
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          2  but also year round.

          3                 In closing, I would like to thank

          4  Mayor Rudy Giuliani, Deputy Mayor Ninfa Segarra,

          5  Chairman Ken Fisher and the other members of this

          6  Committee for their support in helping to make my

          7  agency, soon to be my former agency, a success.

          8                 I just want to add that while I will

          9  leave this agency, I leave it in good spirits in the

         10  sense that I know that the person who will be acting

         11  while the search goes on is a true professional in

         12  the field of youth services, brings a great deal of

         13  credibility to her role.

         14                 And I also wanted to add on a

         15  personal level that I certainly appreciate all of

         16  the support and the guidance that I have gotten from

         17  you both as a committee and as individuals, and I

         18  truly appreciate that. You have made my job a lot

         19  easier, and you have also -- and I say this

         20  unreservedly, serve the youth of our City very, very

         21  well, and I thank you for the opportunity that we

         22  have had to work together.

         23                 I am happy to answer any questions

         24  you may have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I am sure you
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          2  are.

          3                 Council Member -- I think what we are

          4  going to do is, I am going to try and hold my

          5  questions for clean-up. We will turn first to

          6  Council Member Robinson. I am not going to use the

          7  time clock, but I would ask Council members to be

          8  concise. We can do a second round because

          9  Commissioner Hernandez will be over shortly to do

         10  the other part of our hearing.

         11                 Council Member Robinson.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

         13  very much, Chairman Fisher, and I must say for the

         14  record that I am not pleased with the polish that

         15  has been put on the apple here this afternoon, in

         16  regards to what is happening with the Department of

         17  Youth and Community Development.

         18                 Commissioner, in regards to youth,

         19  you indicated that there was a manual that has been

         20  developed, and for some time now I have asked for

         21  the evaluation of the Beacon Program; could you tell

         22  me, is it forthcoming? Is it here? Is it done?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It is not

         24  here, as you know this is an evaluation that was

         25  funded by the Youth Development Institute of the
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          2  Fund for the City of New York using private sector

          3  money. It should be ready for release, we believe,

          4  within the next several weeks. I have seen some

          5  additional versions and we have asked for some

          6  clarification on some particular items, and that

          7  should be ready very soon.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Well, thank

          9  you for the response, but, Commissioner, how can you

         10  put together a manual on the Beacon Program with

         11  that absence of the information from the report? How

         12  did you all put together a beacon? You didn't do

         13  anything different? You just put it together without

         14  this other information? I mean, I don't understand

         15  that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The beacon

         17  evaluation goes into programmatic evaluation as to

         18  what is working, what is not working, and as such,

         19  the beacon procedural manual, which codifies all the

         20  performance expectations that we have, all the rules

         21  and regulations that people have to live with, as

         22  well as helpful hints to maximize particular

         23  effective pieces, that is all there and that is

         24  independent of the actual implementation, evaluation

         25  that we have.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: The

          3  experiences that I have had, and I have been in

          4  government for awhile and I have been in community

          5  service awhile, and all of the organizations and

          6  programs that I participated with, it seems as

          7  though that the evaluative tool that would be used

          8  would help you to go to the next step, and so I have

          9  a problem with -- I don't understand that, but I am

         10  not going to belabor that point.

         11                 I want to ask you this question. In

         12  regards to the Youth Development Delinquency

         13  Program, the After 3:00 Initiative and other

         14  services that are being cut, what is going to be the

         15  impact of the dollar amount that is being taken out

         16  of the budget in regards to how services are going

         17  to be reduced, if any, from this agency?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Are you

         19  talking about a total service impact across the

         20  system?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Service

         22  impact, yes, of the dollars that are being taken out

         23  of the Department of Youth and Community Development

         24  Agency.

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: If the cuts

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  were to stand, the reduction in those particular

          3  programs would total about 80,000 slots.

          4                 Now that does not translate into an

          5  80,000 reduction in the 950,000 slots that we had

          6  served last year, because in fact we are putting up

          7  an additional 39 beacons. We have the impact of a

          8  new 39 beacons coming on. And in fact we probably

          9  will end up serving somewhat more, except that we

         10  will be serving them through the beacon system,

         11  rather than through the YDDP system.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:

         13  Commissioner, also, I noticed that in regards to the

         14  Youth Link Program and the other programs that kind

         15  of feed in, there will be cuts made to those

         16  programs as well. How is the beacon going to

         17  operate? There is no service cuts to Youth Link?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: There is no

         20  service cuts?

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay. All

         23  right.

         24                 What is the projected outreach by

         25  these programs then for the Year 2000, because I
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          2  understand you projected some figures here, you have

          3  given some figures here, and I want to know what is

          4  the projected outreach to those programs?

          5                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: As far as

          6  service levels?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: What we

         10  would use is the reported service levels for 1998,

         11  since we are neither increasing nor decreasing their

         12  budget allocation.

         13                 Our expectation of their performance

         14  will be similar to the numbers that we have quoted

         15  here.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay.

         17                 My final question, Mr. Chairman, is I

         18  have noted that in a survey amongst my colleagues

         19  from the various boroughs, that there appears to be

         20  an undeclared condition of apartheid existing with

         21  services. There are programs, and I am sure that you

         22  would pause at that, but there are programs and

         23  services that have served the City of New York for

         24  many years and have served it well, and we find now

         25  that those programs are, whether for a piece of
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          2  paper or something, that those programs are no

          3  longer servicing the community. The community-based

          4  organizations that have traditionally served our

          5  communities are suffering, they are dying on the

          6  vine, their resources are not being sent to them on

          7  time. What is the response to that? You don't see it

          8  that way?

          9                 My colleagues can all talk about the

         10  conditions and the programs and services that have

         11  traditionally served their communities and their

         12  programs that have been cut substantially.

         13                 I could name them by name but it is

         14  not necessarily to become -- you know, it doesn't

         15  have to become peculiar to me, but my colleagues

         16  that are sitting here, all of our programs and

         17  services are suffering. You need to go into the

         18  Fiscal Department and see whether or not the money

         19  is flowing to those various programs or not because

         20  they are dying on the vine.

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

         22  know how to respond to that because when a term like

         23  apartheid is used --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: It exists in

         25  this City. Maybe not where you are, but we see it.
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          2  Those young people outside -- I am angry today.

          3  Those young people are out there because of the

          4  conditions within this City of New York that have

          5  been created by the Mayor.

          6                 In this document you say thank you,

          7  Mayor Giuliani and everyone else, when they are

          8  killing the young people in the streets, and the

          9  only program you want to offer is JAIL. I am angry

         10  today, and those young people out there are angry

         11  today. That is what is offered in our communities,

         12  JAIL.

         13                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH:

         14  Nevertheless, let me just step back for a second

         15  here. The particular concern that you are expressing

         16  is, when you talking about money not flowing to

         17  programs, are these allocated funds that have not

         18  been spent?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Allocated

         20  funds, Commissioner. Allocated funds that were

         21  allocated and monies that were forwarded through the

         22  City Council have not reached our programs. They are

         23  nickel and dimming the programs so that they die on

         24  the vine.

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            22

          1  YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  never nickel and dimmed any program.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON:

          4  Commissioner, please look into your Financial

          5  Department and find out what is going on, because

          6  all of my colleagues cannot be wrong that are

          7  sitting here. You could ask them, each one of them,

          8  what is happening to your community-based

          9  organizations? They are dying for lack of resources.

         10  If I am wrong I stand to be corrected. I am woman

         11  enough to be corrected if I am wrong. I am sure

         12  there are some service providers in here that could

         13  back up what I am saying.

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I have just

         15  been informed that as far as my Department knows, on

         16  the Councilmanic recommendation for funding that we

         17  would expect from you, you have not even provided us

         18  with a list of organizations --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I beg your

         20  pardon, that is incorrect. We have provided those

         21  lists before --

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I'm sorry.

         24  Ibeg to differ with you. I beg to differ with you.

         25  All of the lists have been provided on discretionary
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          2  items that we support to this City to your agency,

          3  yes, sir. I beg to differ with you, and I will pull

          4  my records and show you date and time that we spoke

          5  to whomever in your Department, so nobody seems to

          6  sit here and say that we haven't provided the

          7  information necessary to the Department to take care

          8  of the business, that is not so.

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Let me

         10  continue with my explanation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: There is a

         12  problem. There is a problem somewhere.

         13                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Well, the

         14  problem that seems to exist is that if you have

         15  prepared a list, that list has not yet been received

         16  by my Department.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: The agency

         18  is playing games. All of the programs and services,

         19  the agency is playing games. I talked to some people

         20  today that proposals are lost and all of that other

         21  kind of stuff. That is happening to people. I know

         22  it for a fact. Maybe you don't know it, maybe

         23  somebody is keeping you from the information, but it

         24  is certainly happening in our communities.

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That is not
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          2  my information. If you would share your particular

          3  list with us that was apparently according to your

          4  records sent to us earlier, I would be happy to

          5  ensure that it receives some priority treatment.

          6                 However, I have not yet, and I have

          7  to stand behind my staff, they have not yet seen

          8  that list. The presumption is that it has not been

          9  prepared yet.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Are you

         11  talking about my list specifically? Or the list from

         12  the other --

         13                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Just my

         15  list?

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: There are

         19  some other people in a similar situation, and to be

         20  perfectly honest my phone number is listed and I

         21  receive calls all the time and I am extremely

         22  responsive. I am probably most responsive when it

         23  comes to these situations because I do understand

         24  your particular concern about the web of

         25  community-based services that you support. And if
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          2  there is a problem there on an individual basis or

          3  are a larger basis, then I would appreciate you --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: That

          5  information is part of the budget. When we review

          6  the budget, Commissioner, when we review the budget

          7  and pass it, it comes out in the book, in terms of

          8  the discretionary items and the programs and

          9  services that we want to receive discretionary

         10  dollars, as City Council initiatives, and the other

         11  monies that we put forth.

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

         13  think I have ever, I don't think I have ever not

         14  taken your recommendations and turned them into

         15  programs, and if there is a particular issue that we

         16  should talk about with a particular organization, I

         17  have always held myself available to do that, and I

         18  will for the next few days continue to hold myself

         19  available. I have, I believe, one of the most

         20  cooperative and professional staff in this City to

         21  deal with these kind of funding issues.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner, let

         23  me interrupt for a second, because I want to get to

         24  the bottom of it and I don't think we are going to

         25  resolve it today.
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          2                 Either the Council member is correct

          3  and your records are wrong or vice-versa, I would

          4  like to have somebody from your staff get back to me

          5  tomorrow, if possible, as to which lists you have

          6  received,, when you received them, and then I will

          7  go back and check with the individual Council

          8  members if the ones that have not been received, for

          9  many of them, and see what the bottleneck is.

         10                 I also want to point out to you,

         11  because you and I have discussed this separately, is

         12  that there are problems, regardless of whether it is

         13  these funds or other programs, that there do seem to

         14  be delays in processing of payments and a lot of

         15  other problems, and I don't know whether it is in

         16  your office, the Mayor's Office of Contracts, the

         17  Comptroller's Office, all I know is that we

         18  appropriate funds and the groups don't wind up

         19  getting the money and that is something that Council

         20  Member Freed has been looking into in the Contracts

         21  Committee. And what happens is, there is an awful

         22  lot of fingerpointing going on, once you finish the

         23  contract, they say it takes too long at the

         24  Comptroller's Office and then the money doesn't flow

         25  and I don't know what the problem is but we are
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          2  going to have to get to the bottom of it and sooner

          3  rather than later.

          4                 So, if you can have somebody get back

          5  to me tomorrow about what lists are outstanding -- I

          6  know that even with our own lists there was a delay

          7  in getting it over to you and it wasn't because it

          8  didn't leave our office on time, I know because from

          9  our own experience.  But we will come back to that

         10  later on.

         11                 Council Member Clarke.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman.

         14                 Commissioner, I think you are going

         15  from paradise into something else with homeless

         16  services, but I know you will do and work as

         17  diligently with our homeless population as you have

         18  with our youth population so let me just offer you

         19  my own congratulations and let me offer you my

         20  thanks to the initiatives that we have done together

         21  in the 40th District, especially the citizenship for

         22  the elderly and the disabled. So let me go on record

         23  as thanking you for the many hours that you have

         24  worked with my staff and my constituents to make

         25  them eligible for those dollars that they have long
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          2  worked for and for which they should have had and

          3  must have because they have already given their life

          4  to the U.S., they may not have been naturalized and

          5  therefore did not know that their benefits would be

          6  taken from them, so I thank you for helping to

          7  restore those benefits.

          8                 On your page, I guess three of your

          9  testimony, you are making some announcements about

         10  funding and it is the one balance intervention and

         11  prevention RFP. You said that there will be, will

         12  provide, seeking funds for 11 organizations to

         13  provide youth services, ages nine to 21, residing

         14  throughout the City where there are violence; how

         15  have you identified those communities, our

         16  neighborhoods, where the violence is more prevalent?

         17                 How will you in this RFP make sure

         18  that the services will be provided where they are

         19  most needed by persons or organizations that are

         20  both culturally, racially and religiously sensitive

         21  to those communities where those violence are a

         22  result of maybe alienation in some cases and in

         23  other cases downright, you know, I am trying to see

         24  how much I can get away with, how will we make sure

         25  that the funding is equitable, adequate and address
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          2  all of the needs in all of those communities where

          3  violence is prevalent?

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: You bring

          5  up a very important point that is something we have

          6  to keep in mind once we have these programs underway

          7  because this is a demonstration program that is

          8  designed to illicit and to test different

          9  methodologies of serving kids different program

         10  designs. So this is very much a demonstration

         11  program relatively modest funding, I think the total

         12  of that is less than $700,000 among 11

         13  organizations.

         14                 We will certainly keep in mind the

         15  fact that we want providers who reflect the

         16  neighborhoods in which they will be operating,

         17  presuming that the population is reflected in their

         18  service population.

         19                 We took a look at a variety of data

         20  in order to develop appropriate areas for the

         21  testing of these different models that will be the

         22  response to this RFP, and, you know, I am really,

         23  really very hopeful that through this process over

         24  the next 16 to 18 months as we have these programs

         25  operating, that they will allow us to design and to
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          2  implement into our regular portfolio proven

          3  strategies under rigorous assessment, selected under

          4  rigorous assessment, from this portfolio. So I think

          5  it is -- while I know that the two Citywide

          6  education providers that we intend to select under

          7  this, we have a pretty clear idea of what they are

          8  going to be doing.

          9                 We have left the field open as to

         10  program design for those other six to eight

         11  providers who will be dealing with the kids

         12  themselves, and as I said, this is purely a

         13  demonstration program, it is not intended as a major

         14  new initiative in the sense of actual service

         15  provision, that will grow out of this particular

         16  initiative.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, are you

         18  having any collaboration with the Department of

         19  Juvenile Justice, which is another youth

         20  organization? And if so, what should we be

         21  expecting, and what is the nature of that

         22  collaboration? Are they putting any dollars? Are

         23  these just your dollars?

         24                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, these

         25  are the dollars that are available to this
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          2  Department through community service block grant

          3  funding.

          4                 DJJ was extremely helpful in

          5  providing us not only with data but also being part

          6  of the developmental process for this RFP. And where

          7  I believe they are going to have an even greater

          8  role is going to be in the assessment phase as we

          9  see these programs up and running and I am sure they

         10  are going to be able to contribute some of their

         11  expertise to us as we assess the efficacy of

         12  particular models that we will then be able to

         13  select out and hold out as best practices.

         14                 So, they have been extremely helpful

         15  to us, they have provided us with data, they were

         16  very helpful in the concept of the RFP, and they

         17  will be I believe very helpful as we assess the

         18  efficacy of the particular models that are selected

         19  under this RFP.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I am not using

         21  as strong a language as my colleague Annette

         22  Robinson, but I see an initiative for New American

         23  Youth and I understand and I know that if you are a

         24  youth that comes from Africa, the Caribbean or, you

         25  know, South America, you are considered an
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          2  immigrant, and if you come from Europe you are a new

          3  American; is this money addressing all persons who

          4  come irrespective of the direction from which they

          5  came to arrive in the City of New York? So, when you

          6  say new Americans, can Puerto Ricans be added into

          7  it? Or are they already Americans so they get

          8  nothing?

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I believe

         10  most Puerto -- most New Yorkers or Puerto Rican

         11  ancestry consider themselves by right and are by

         12  right Americans and don't need to consider

         13  themselves to be new or in any case qualified.

         14                 The programs that we are looking at

         15  include a variety of populations, including the

         16  populations that you have just enunciated as being

         17  part of the service population, and will of course

         18  be done in a very culturally sensitive manner.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So you don't

         20  do the doubletalking --

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: When you say

         23  new Americans you mean all of us that came in those

         24  additional ways?

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: My
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          2  definition of new Americans are non-native born U.S.

          3  citizens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I take that

          5  and I thank you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I also wanted to

          8  note, Commissioner, that your staff has been very

          9  creative and effective in helping us design this

         10  initiative and, you know, very often people who

         11  actually move the paper from one place to another

         12  don't get the recognition that they deserve, but

         13  your agency has been working with the Council

         14  because the New American Youth Initiative was

         15  something that the Council had suggested and they

         16  have been very professional in helping us to design

         17  it to make it as effective as possible, and I wanted

         18  to note that for the record.

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         21  Perkins.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         23  very much, Mr. Chairman, and to my colleague,

         24  Councilman Robles, as well.

         25                 Commissioner, I want to pursue a
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          2  little longer the concern that my colleague Annette

          3  Robinson raised in terms of what is happening with

          4  regard to the cuts and our community-based groups.

          5  The proposed cuts are effectively wiping them out,

          6  and you should know that for our communities these

          7  groups are the basic infrastructure of our

          8  communities. In many respects, especially as it

          9  relates to young people, they are like the lifeline.

         10                 For instance, the police deservedly

         11  get credit for the reduction of crime, but they

         12  don't get all the credit. By far some of our

         13  neighborhood groups, in terms of their crime

         14  prevention activities and their other youth-related

         15  activities, have discouraged young people from

         16  participating in crime and have even taken some that

         17  have been involved in criminal activity and

         18  persuaded them to do something significantly and

         19  more community importantly different.

         20                 You know this, I am sure, and I don't

         21  mean to suggest that you don't, but this budget

         22  proposal, these cuts that you are sharing with us,

         23  leaving with us as you move on to greener pastures,

         24  we hope, is terribly frightening. An my colleague

         25  pointed to the young people that are outside that
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          2  are angry and feel as if government, and in this

          3  particular case the police, but in general is

          4  indifferent and even hostile towards them.

          5                 This budget documents that in dollars

          6  and cents. Many of them are young people that you

          7  probably may be familiar with by virtue of the

          8  programs that you funded or administered in your

          9  tenure as the Commissioner, so it is scary that this

         10  type of thing would happen. As we are attempting to

         11  bring some sort of reason and calm to this City in

         12  the wake of the Diallo case and with the anger and

         13  frustration that is going on out there, to have to

         14  go back to our communities and share with them that

         15  the budget bullet is about to hit them and create

         16  even greater devastation or less opportunity for

         17  them; can you help me with this?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I should

         19  point out that the Mayor's budget proposal is, I

         20  think once you discount even the discretionary

         21  money, which is traditionally restored by the

         22  Council only a couple of points less than it was in

         23  1997.

         24                 Last year, as you know, we mounted a

         25  major expansion of the beacon system. Last year we
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          2  mounted in the Harlem area alone, I believe we have

          3  at least two additional beacon schools, at least

          4  two.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: There is not

          6  one additional beacon school in the 9th Councilmanic

          7  District that I represent.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I don't want

         10  to argue with you about that, but there has been no

         11  beacon schools in my district.

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: There is at

         13  least one beacon school in your district.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You indicated

         15  that there had been additional beacon schools. There

         16  has not been an additional beacon school --

         17                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Excuse me.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: -- Since I

         19  have been in this City Council in my district.

         20                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And you are

         21  absolutely right probably not in your district;

         22  however, I was referring to Harlem, I didn't know

         23  that you felt that you represented all of Harlem.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well, I

         25  represent Central Harlem.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: There is not

          4  one in Central Harlem.

          5                 There has not been an additional one

          6  in West Harlem, which is represented by Stan

          7  Michels, so I am not quite sure what is left.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would be

          9  happy to show you my map.

         10                 But be that as it may, the point that

         11  you are making is as if we are unilaterally wiping

         12  out all community-based services.

         13                 We are proposing a significant

         14  reduction in the YDDP money, that is absolutely

         15  true. I believe the reduction is somewhere in the

         16  order of 26 percent against a base that was only

         17  recently, what I mean by recently, this year

         18  increased.

         19                 So the programs have been used to

         20  operating under a lot less money in prior years.

         21                 I am sure that as the budget process

         22  continues, you will continue to make that case to

         23  the appropriate people.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You know, and

         25  I don't want to dwell too much on this, Mr.
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          2  Chairman, but I just want to recognize the fact that

          3  the money for youth today are less than they were

          4  five years ago.

          5                 Now, we should not be talking about,

          6  I guess my point is, cutting the youth budgets, but

          7  we should be talking about expanding them. We should

          8  be talking about, it seems to me, Mr. Commissioner,

          9  that our young people are in need and are anxious to

         10  do the right thing, and that we, in acknowledgment

         11  of that, will through a budget process increase what

         12  we can do for them, the opportunities that we can

         13  provide for them, as opposed to decreasing it and

         14  then trying to rationalize it as if it is not so

         15  much less than it was a few weeks ago, a few months

         16  ago, when in fact we have a surplus and we are

         17  saying to them, well, crime is down, youth groups

         18  have played a significant role, block associations,

         19  tenant associations, churches, et cetera, so what we

         20  are going to do is we are going to increase money

         21  for police, and decrease money for youth. We are

         22  going to cut, cripple programs but fortify jails; do

         23  you understand?

         24                 So the message that we are

         25  communicating, again, I know your heart is in the
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          2  right place, but I just want to be able to -- and I

          3  don't want to be picking on you, but you are the

          4  Commissioner and you are sitting there, and it is

          5  not fair for young people who are outside protesting

          6  not to be having their issues represented by the

          7  person that is the head of the agency in their name,

          8  even if you are going to the homeless shortly.

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It is very

         10  difficult to change perception, so let me not try to

         11  change perception. Let me just point out some

         12  realities.

         13                 The Mayor's budget plan for Year 2000

         14  is 15 percent more money, represents an increase of

         15  15 percent more over FY '96 which is two years ago.

         16  It is 13 percent more than FY '97. It is two percent

         17  less than last year, FY '99.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It is less

         19  than last year?

         20                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It is two

         21  percent less --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So we are

         23  cutting --

         24                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Than '98, I

         25  am sorry. Two percent less than last year, and that
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          2  takes into account those things that we

          3  traditionally put up for the budget reduction

          4  exercise, such as the Councilmanic discretionary

          5  money, so once you put that back in, the net effect

          6  is still -- and I will presume that the Council will

          7  insist on its prerogative, the net effect will still

          8  be an increase, a total increase in youth funding

          9  over prior years. So that is reality. Perception I

         10  can't deal with.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Commissioner,

         12  the reality that you are presenting is a contrived

         13  reality that, you know, statistics, the first thing

         14  I learned in graduate school is that statistics lie.

         15  So, it is clear that you are manipulating these

         16  statistics to give, to minimize the significance of

         17  what is going on. You can do that. I can't stop you

         18  from doing that, but that is not reality that is

         19  outside this Council Chambers and that is in these

         20  neighborhoods now.

         21                 Now, you are a good soldier, you are

         22  going to be very good with the party line and I am

         23  not going to criticize you for that, but you really

         24  have to take to hear, this is not a battle of

         25  numbers, this is a moral question here, and I think
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          2  that we have to really begin to face that, because

          3  otherwise we are heading for a very serious problem,

          4  much more serious than maybe we have ever seen

          5  before.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner

          9  Lopez -- I am sorry, Council Member Lopez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Don't get too

         11  happy, because that Administration I will not work

         12  for.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Well, there will

         14  be another administration in 2002.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And for that

         16  one I will be willing to work for.

         17                 Commissioner, it seems to be that

         18  this will be the last time that you will be here

         19  testifying as a Commissioner of this particular

         20  Department, and I want to tell you I appreciate the

         21  work that you have done there. And I know that

         22  sometimes when you have come here I have been very

         23  rough on your feathers, but that is part of my job

         24  and I hope that you can understand that.

         25                 But I would like to have a
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          2  conversation with you today. I am very puzzled about

          3  the whole budget that I had been seeing on the

          4  budget modification.

          5                 In your testimony you said, and I

          6  quote, in your second page, of course one of our

          7  greatest accomplishments during the past year was

          8  the near doubling of the beacon school from 39 to

          9  75. And then you go saying how proud you are of this

         10  beacon program.

         11                 Shall I assume that that is correct,

         12  that that is the program that your administration

         13  and the Administration feels that is very, very

         14  important?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That is

         16  absolutely correct. I mean, we have been very

         17  supportive of expansion of that particular program,

         18  and as has this particular committee and the Council

         19  at large. The value of this program has been -- will

         20  I think be manifest as the evaluation is released.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, then

         22  taking that into consideration, and understanding

         23  that that is the position of the Administration and

         24  the agency that you represent, can you explain to me

         25  then why the budget cut is projecting cuts to
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          2  programs that support the beacon school programs,

          3  without those programs and without the programs that

          4  provide support to the beacon schools, the beacon

          5  schools are going to fall apart. Then if in concept

          6  and in ideology, the beacons programs are very

          7  important to the Administration, it goes beyond my

          8  understanding, why is it that the budget cuts that

          9  you are going to implement are going to be

         10  implementing in programs that directly support the

         11  beacons and once that budget cut be implemented and

         12  occur, the beacons are going to fall apart. Your

         13  Administration is aware of this?

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We don't

         15  view it quite in the same fashion, Councilwoman.

         16                 The way that we look at it is that we

         17  have a number of YDDP -- we have a YDDP portfolio

         18  where we have proposed an overall reduction of about

         19  26 percent which reflects itself then in a 75

         20  percent approximately operating range for the YDDP

         21  programs. We still feel that the majority of the

         22  programs and the vast majority of the programs will

         23  still be able to operate under that. That is

         24  certainly the position that I am operating from.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, then I
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          2  want to notify you in this public hearing that you

          3  are making a big mistake, and the mistake is going

          4  to be that you are going to injure the own program

          5  that you so treasure, the program that you are

          6  saying here that it is so important, you are going

          7  to injure that program with implementation of this

          8  budget cut to those programs that support this main

          9  program to youth.

         10                 I am just notifying you of that and I

         11  suggest to you and to your Administration, to go and

         12  take a very hard look in what you are proposing,

         13  because the consequences are going to be really

         14  devastating to the beacon program.

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I will

         16  certainly take your advice under review. We will --

         17  we monitor our programs, we review our programs, we

         18  monitor the effectiveness, and we will keep on

         19  assessing this particular situation, as you have

         20  requested.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: From my

         22  community I want to echo the voice of City

         23  Councilwoman Annette Robinson. I want you to

         24  understand that you may not know this but what is

         25  going on in your Department in regard to derailing
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          2  the process of handling and putting the dollars that

          3  were assigned from the last budget to all of the

          4  youth organizations and programs for the youth

          5  organizations in our community is a reality in my

          6  district. And the only way that I was able to make

          7  sure that funding reached out to those places where

          8  I assigned the funding was because I had to

          9  intervene, and I intervened through the Fiscal Unit

         10  of the City Council. Calls were made back and forth,

         11  back and forth, to make sure that the funding was

         12  handled and finally reached the place it is supposed

         13  to reach. If it is not by my intervention,

         14  Commissioner, it would never happen, and there are

         15  still programs that have not been taken care of.

         16                 Now, I want you to understand that

         17  what is going on in this City right now is the

         18  atmosphere of fear. Programs are afraid to speak out

         19  because they are afraid that consequences are going

         20  to come down on them. They are not willing to come

         21  forward to tell the Administration that they are

         22  treating them unfairly, because they are afraid that

         23  the next action will be your contract is terminated.

         24                 This is what has been expressed to

         25  me, as a City Council member of my area, and I don't
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          2  have no reason not to believe the people who are

          3  telling me this. This is what is going on and the

          4  perception that exists in my community toward your

          5  Administration and the Administration of the Mayor.

          6  And this had to come from somewhere, Commissioner.

          7  There has to be some truth to it, and I want you to

          8  address this and to tell me why the programs in our

          9  communities feel afraid to come forward, and afraid

         10  to say this is what is going on with us.

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: If you

         12  would have been monitoring my telephone in the time

         13  frame of let's say middle of October through

         14  December, while the budget negotiations I would

         15  characterize them as were going on, you would not

         16  share the opinion, you would not put forward the

         17  opinion that people were afraid to call me, because

         18  in fact I handled a whole bunch of calls of people

         19  wondering where their money was at, and we explained

         20  to them quite succinctly that this was still part of

         21  a negotiation that was going on.

         22                 We have reduced, we have processed,

         23  as far as I know, and we are in the process of

         24  finalizing that, just about all of the programs that

         25  have been given to us. We are in very good shape on
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          2  that.

          3                 I am not sure where people would find

          4  that they were -- where people get the impression

          5  that they cannot talk to me, I find probably that I

          6  talk to contractors just about every day about one

          7  problem or another. In some cases a very, very small

          8  problem and in other cases compliments about my

          9  staff and how they have handled particular

         10  situations.

         11                 I talk to contractors I believe just

         12  about every day. If this were a consistent situation

         13  where contractors felt that they could not talk to

         14  me, I would probably say that I should have quit as

         15  Commissioner some time ago. One of my major

         16  functions has been to talk to contractors and I

         17  believe if you were to take a look at my telephone

         18  logs and if you were to take a look at my

         19  correspondence records, you would find, I believe

         20  that an awful lot of them contact me and speak with

         21  me.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Well, this is

         23  not the impression that people in my community are

         24  giving me, and something is wrong here, something is

         25  not quite right.
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          2                 Now, I want to address the last point

          3  with you. The last time that you were here I asked

          4  you in regard to the homeless population that are

          5  youth --

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And

          8  Commissioner, I am very saddened to say that in your

          9  testimony, in the budget preliminary modification,

         10  there is nothing speaking about the services to the

         11  homeless population of youth in our City.

         12                 The last time you were here I asked

         13  you a lot of questions in regard to that population,

         14  from asking you if you have an assessment done in

         15  regard of what that population needs, where they

         16  are, who they are, what are the services that they

         17  need to be taken care. I mean, I asked you plenty of

         18  questions the last time that I saw you here and one

         19  more time I see that that population is ignored. One

         20  more time they are not being taken care of, they are

         21  not being addressed. And one more time I have to

         22  remind you, and to remind the City, that many of

         23  them are infected with HIV, and that disease, it

         24  will continue to be transmitted to people until we

         25  take care of this problem with that particular

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

          2  population. And unless services are given to them

          3  that are appropriate, we are not going to have a

          4  handle on it.

          5                 Then I am asking you, what is your

          6  plan about them?

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I have been

          8  working very, very closely with various community

          9  boards in Manhattan to finalize our plan. We have a

         10  number of things that we have brought forward. I

         11  will be happy to brief you on the extent of where we

         12  are at right now on that particular situation. I

         13  have spent a lot of time over the last six to eight

         14  months in both developing the plan, as well as

         15  making sure that it is a workable plan, we have

         16  spoken before, your concern about total resources

         17  available to this population from the state has been

         18  noted, and we have put that forward as one of our

         19  points.

         20                 And as I indicated, I will be more

         21  than happy to discuss what is going on in this

         22  particular area with you. I believe we have made

         23  significant progress on homeless and runaway youth.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman,

         25  can I request that you take into consideration to
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          2  call a hearing on reporting to us what are the

          3  advances that have been made in regard to the

          4  homeless youth population, and what are the programs

          5  that are in the pipeline, although I don't see any

          6  of that reflected in the budget that is here in

          7  place, therefore, I wonder when it is that this is

          8  going to happen. Because if we don't approve it in

          9  the budget this year, then I guess that they are

         10  going to be taken in care (sic) maybe the Year 2001?

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Let me just

         12  say that in the budget there is over $3 million

         13  available for the runaway and homeless youth. We

         14  have programmed that money. I will be happy to have

         15  a special briefing session on this, or if it doesn't

         16  happen before I leave the job, I am sure that Deputy

         17  Commissioner Mitchell will be more than happy to

         18  talk about what we have put together in that

         19  particular situation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Commissioner,

         21  the last time that you were here it was pointed out

         22  to you very clear that the amount of monies that are

         23  allocated to deal with the homeless youth population

         24  is not sufficient. That the programs that are out

         25  there are not working and they are not addressing
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          2  the problem. We gave you information in regard to

          3  that. Groups came here to testify on that,

          4  therefore, unless I see in this budget a proposal or

          5  a projection about taking care of that problem, I

          6  cannot take the Department serious in the sense of

          7  saying to me that you are addressing the problem or

          8  that you are projecting that you are going to

          9  address the problem.

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: As I have

         11  indicated, I have spent a lot of time in developing

         12  the services and making sure that they are

         13  available. I will be happy to report on this to you

         14  in a separate session. The money that is in the

         15  budget has stayed in the budget, I have not reduced

         16  that particular funding stream.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That was the

         18  point, it was not sufficient at the time.

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Allow me to

         20  continue.

         21                 And I agreed with you, as I believe,

         22  that the money was not sufficient, but that the

         23  fight was between the state and the city and we

         24  needed to get additional resources from the state

         25  and the city. I don't know if I made the statement
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          2  to your specifically, Council Member, or made the

          3  statement to the chairperson.

          4                 The point of the matter is, that,

          5  yes, you know, we would want some additional

          6  resources there, and, yes, we are fighting at the

          7  state level to try to get those resources.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         11  Stabile.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: As we are

         13  going on arguing and everyone is expressing their

         14  frustrations and if it is with the demonstration

         15  outside or any other reason why we are getting so

         16  hostile, I would like to add some interesting notes

         17  here: There are 75 beacons in the City of New York,

         18  there are 51 Council people in the City of New York.

         19  I, who represent the 32nd Council District, don't

         20  have one beacon yet in service, okay? And we have

         21  fought for it and we have fought for it and we have

         22  changed the site and now we are looking at another

         23  site, which is Junior High School 210, which I

         24  understand we are going to have --

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So, I will be

          3  happy to have my first beacon, okay? So, I am not

          4  even complaining about adding beacons, I am just

          5  happy getting my first beacon, which I applaud you

          6  on in working with you on that.

          7                 I hear remarks made about party

          8  lines. Well, several months ago when we voted the

          9  budget, and some of us who did not want to vote the

         10  budget, immediately we were attacked on our

         11  discretionary money, and we were cut by 30 percent

         12  across the board. We are talking everything, youth,

         13  health, anything that we were given money to, even

         14  seniors, we were cut across the board 30 percent and

         15  it wasn't cut from the Mayor's side, it was cut from

         16  the Council's side.

         17                 So, when we start talking party line,

         18  it should be addressed on both sides.

         19                 Am I totally happy with this youth

         20  Preliminary Budget? No, I am not. I would be a liar.

         21  Do I agree with some of the other programs about

         22  HIV? I happen to agree 100 percent. Do I think we

         23  need more youth programs out there in minority areas

         24  and areas we do have problems in that we need? I

         25  agree 100 percent. But I am tired of hearing
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          2  everything to be party lines or black and white. It

          3  is not fair. It is not fair to us, it is not fair to

          4  our constituency. And if there are certain problems,

          5  we should address them.

          6                 I have called you on numerous times,

          7  and I have gotten responses back quickly. How long

          8  has it taken us to get this program off the floor? A

          9  year and a half? Okay? And I am not screaming,

         10  hollering, because I knew we would have certain

         11  problems with it. But under your predecessors, who I

         12  also fought with to try to get a beacon school in my

         13  district, which we didn't get, up until this recent

         14  budget it was the first one put in, I have very

         15  serious problems when we look at things and we right

         16  away want to put it in the scope of just

         17  administration against the Council or black and

         18  white or party lines. I think we should look at the

         19  whole picture.

         20                 And I don't think anyone here is

         21  happy with any cuts to youth services, and anyone

         22  who is going to sit here and say they are happy to

         23  see cuts to any program in youth services we are

         24  unhappy with. But I will also say that some of the

         25  youth service programs that I have problems with,
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          2  and off the record I will definitely sit down with

          3  you and give you a name of several, who amazingly

          4  get enormous amount of money through federal state

          5  and city grants, and the majority of the money never

          6  reaches down to the poor individual boy and girl on

          7  the street who could use the services. Because they

          8  work under a beautiful title called

          9  "not-for-profit", but, yes, the head of that

         10  corporation, that so-called not-for-profit

         11  organization, can make $110,000 a year out of maybe

         12  a $250,000 budget.

         13                 So, I have serious problems with some

         14  of the ways these youth programs are being run

         15  throughout the City, not just in certain areas of

         16  Brooklyn or certain areas of Queens or certain areas

         17  of Manhattan, throughout the City.

         18                 When I look at the cuts, and you said

         19  in '96 we had an increase of 15 percent, in '97 we

         20  had an increase of 13 percent. In '98, what did we

         21  have?

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We had an

         23  increase of I believe -- approximately 20 some odd

         24  percent.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Increase?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: In 1998.

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So basically

          6  across the board we have increased?

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It has been

          8  increasing since I became Commissioner in FY '95 I

          9  believe -- yes, '95, I became Commissioner in 1996,

         10  but that was FY '97. It has been increasing since

         11  1996, the year before I got to be Commissioner.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So, across

         13  the board, this past three to four years we have

         14  increased.

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We have

         16  always had an increase.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner,

         20  just to clarify the record, and by the way, Council

         21  Member, I was very happy to hear your remarks

         22  because I hope this June when the Council opposes

         23  cuts proposed by the Mayor, you will vote with us

         24  instead of against us, and we vote to add money to

         25  the beacon programs you will vote with us rather
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          2  than against us. This is not a Democratic/Republican

          3  issue, the kids don't have party enrollments, it is

          4  about whether services are provided or they are not

          5  provided --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Just a point

          7  of interest.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And so I welcome

          9  the comments that you made in support of those

         10  programs and I look forward --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Anything that

         12  will support youth programs and make youth programs

         13  work in the City I will vote yes for. And we can go

         14  by the old Chairman, Victor Robles would know that,

         15  it's a mere fact.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: But I am not

         17  going to vote on a whole budget that I don't

         18  particularly believe in. And if we can separate how

         19  we vote on the budget, if we can vote for certain

         20  agencies and not for others, then I can go along

         21  with your discussion.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And just also for

         23  the record, Commissioner, the increases in funding

         24  for youth services that you alluded to over the last

         25  few years, am I correct, all of those were Council
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          2  initiated increases. This Administration has not, in

          3  its budget plans, supported any increases in youth

          4  funding, except to the extent that there were

          5  inflationary costs built into a program so that if,

          6  you know, because of contracts or other things, but

          7  in terms of actually adding money to youth services,

          8  all of those initiatives came from the Council;

          9  isn't that correct?

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That's

         11  incorrect.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay, then please

         13  enlighten us.

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The initial

         15  trust for the beacon expansion came from the

         16  Administration. As I recall the Mayor proposed I

         17  believe either eight or ten new beacons, ten new

         18  beacons and then in further discussion with Council

         19  staff we started an upward spiral which ended up in

         20  an additional 40 beacons total.

         21                 So, no, the belief was that the

         22  beacon by the Administration was that the beacon

         23  model plays a valuable role in drug prevention and

         24  education services and therefore as part of the

         25  Mayor's overall anti-drug strategy aimed
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          2  particularly at youth, this was a valuable model for

          3  us to increase.

          4                 I don't believe you were the

          5  Chairperson at that particular point so --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Cruz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         10  Robles is reminding me that at the same time there

         11  was a proposal to increase the beacon funding, there

         12  were offsetting proposals to cut other funding, so

         13  that the actual gross amount proposed for the

         14  Department of Youth Services by the Mayor was not an

         15  increase. All of the increases have come as a result

         16  of Council --

         17                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would

         18  have to pull out my notes, and we can discuss this.

         19  But in any case it is water under the bridge

         20  so-to-speak.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         22  Cruz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: First,

         24  Commissioner, I would like to begin by thanking you.

         25  You have been sensitive and accessible to this
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          2  Councilperson, and for that I wish you sincere

          3  wishes as you go on to Homeless, and I echo the

          4  comments that were made previously that we hope you

          5  will be sensitive and accessible to the homeless.

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Certainly I want

          8  to congratulate our Acting Commissioner Violet

          9  Mitchell, who is knowledgeable, has the experience.

         10  You have been around the block for a long time, and

         11  we hope that you will continue what we have

         12  established.

         13                 But in having said that, I very

         14  strongly want to echo the sentiments of my Council

         15  Member Annette Robinson. There is a lot of angry

         16  youth out there, a lot of angry youth that feel that

         17  this Administration has repeatedly decimated their

         18  programs.

         19                 I want to step back and look at your

         20  statement, Commissioner. The second page, you talk

         21  about the Street Outreach Program, and it says that

         22  we made contact with 1,674 youth, not in beacons, in

         23  parks, on playgrounds, in the streets, that is where

         24  so many of our youngsters are, they are on the

         25  streets. They are not all in beacons.
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          2                 And I move on to page three of your

          3  statement and it says that Rudy Crew issued a letter

          4  that highlights advantages of working with

          5  community-based organizations, if you don't have a

          6  beacon we are out of luck. Something is very, very

          7  wrong with this picture. I am telling you, because

          8  as you said, hindsight, guess what? But

          9  Commissioner, Acting Commissioner, you will be

         10  coming on and as you start looking, these are the

         11  things that we need to look at, community-based

         12  organizations are a very important factor in our

         13  communities, all right? Those are the lifelines that

         14  assist beacon. You are not going to have effective

         15  beacon programs without community-based

         16  organizations.

         17                 Let me just move on and share with

         18  you that I certainly want to be able to say that the

         19  YDDP programs have repeatedly, the youth have

         20  repeatedly been targets of budget cuts in this

         21  Administration. I have to say that.

         22                 It is the Council's understanding

         23  that the Administration objects to these programs

         24  because they are decentralized and less control of

         25  them. We need to know, and I think everybody needs
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          2  to know are beacons the pet program, because they

          3  can be controlled and because we select the sites

          4  and who is going to run it and the whole bit; I want

          5  to know that. I think this Council needs to know.

          6  Whereas, the citywide beacons are certainly more

          7  accessible to the Administration. While the beacons

          8  are supported by the Council, Commissioner, the YDDP

          9  programs provide those services to neighborhoods

         10  that don't have beacons. Mr. Stabile went one way

         11  and I was saying, gee, he is saying I don't have a

         12  beacon program, however, you know something? I do

         13  know, and if my Council member was here I would say,

         14  gee, perhaps in your area you don't need it as much

         15  as we damn do in other areas, which is why you don't

         16  have one, all right? But I am certainly happy that

         17  he finally has at least one.

         18                 I need to know are the support of

         19  youth programs limited mainly to the beacon program?

         20  Why is this Administration leaning that way? Could

         21  we have that response?

         22                 And how do we propose to serve the

         23  youth that are not in neighborhoods that have

         24  beacons? And I want to know cost, how are we

         25  comparing the cost of a YDDP program compared to
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          2  running a beacon? Those are my three questions, just

          3  hold them.

          4                 And then in response to the

          5  discretionary monies, those lists; Commissioner, I

          6  know you received mine, okay? But I want you to know

          7  that every Council Member is made aware that there

          8  is a deadline with submissions to that, and we all

          9  send them in.

         10                 I want you to be aware that it is

         11  very important that your agency which is told these

         12  are the funds that we are allocating to youth

         13  agencies gets back to these Council members in a

         14  timely manner to tell us the paperwork hasn't been

         15  submitted by organizations, or something is missing

         16  because at the 11th hour when we choose to follow

         17  up, we find out vans haven't been delivered; how

         18  come? Well, they didn't do the paperwork. Well, who

         19  the hell knew that paperwork was missing? Or funds

         20  have been sent here and were sent there erroneously,

         21  and the program that we wanted to serve as the

         22  conduit doesn't inform the agency. All of this is

         23  happening and unless we follow up, there is no

         24  follow-up from your agency, I think that is very,

         25  very important. So, those were on hopefully
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          2  implementation and follow-up that needs to be done

          3  by your agency with the Council Members, and in

          4  addition to my three questions, there is a statement

          5  here in our preliminary that says the community

          6  development borough needs program, there are

          7  proposed reductions only for Brooklyn, Virginia

          8  Field's Borough, and Fernando Ferrer. I don't see

          9  where Staten Island, Queens and Brooklyn are being

         10  proposed. Could you give me a reason for that,

         11  please? Because, you know, when we talk about --

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: All right,

         13  may I start answering?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: The community

         15  development borough needs program, that they are

         16  being eliminated from a black Borough President, and

         17  a Latino Borough President, so I am questioning is

         18  there something happening here? Are we missing

         19  something?

         20                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Possibly a

         21  full understanding of what we are doing is what is

         22  missing.

         23                 Let me start off that, as you

         24  rightfully pointed out, the Street Outreach Program

         25  served 16,000 youth, I anticipate they will serve at
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          2  least the same amount. The Neighborhood Youth

          3  Alliance served probably 9,000 kids, they will

          4  continue to serve the same amount.

          5                 The third initiative which is the

          6  Youth Link Program will also serve the same amount.

          7  I have not reduced any funding to them. Absolutely

          8  none. Zero, zilch. My proposal, as has been put

          9  forward in the Mayor's budget package is a targeted

         10  reduction. The targeted reduction is YDDP. Your

         11  Councilmanic money and the discretionary money.

         12  Those are the targeted reductions that I put forward

         13  in the plan.

         14                 I am not proposing to eliminate any

         15  of the programs that are funded under the YDDP. I am

         16  proposing to reduce some of the funding. The

         17  reduction in the funding that I am proposing is

         18  approximately 25 percent, or maybe a little more

         19  than 25 percent of the total amount of money that

         20  they have been allocated this year, which represents

         21  an increase of close to 30 percent over prior years.

         22                 So, before we start rushing off the

         23  cliff here and saying that I am destroying an entire

         24  network of providers, it ain't so. It is not so. We

         25  are reducing a certain amount of money to one
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          2  particular portfolio, and I intend to work, as we

          3  have in the past, I will continue to work through

          4  neighborhood-based community-based operations,

          5  because that is in fact very near and dear and close

          6  to my heart and part of our overall strategy to

          7  localize services. So that is certainly what is

          8  going on.

          9                 The additional question on the

         10  community's share for community board and community

         11  school board allocation; as you probably know, and I

         12  believe I reported on this in full Committee

         13  session, my agency was audited and what was

         14  discovered by the Comptroller's Office and what was

         15  discovered was in fact that there are certain

         16  inequities in the amount of money allocated by

         17  Community Boards to Community Boards.

         18                 In other words, if you take a $3

         19  million portfolio, or whatever the size of the

         20  portfolio is, and you use the old allocation

         21  methodology, if you take a look at the per capita

         22  expenditure per youth in each one of the districts,

         23  there is in fact a tremendous inequity in the amount

         24  of money that is being delegated to areas in

         25  Brooklyn and the Bronx, compared to areas in other
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          2  parts of this City.

          3                 We asked for and received a study

          4  from the Center for Urban Research of the City

          5  University of New York, which proposes nine

          6  different models of reallocating that funding.

          7                 One of my last acts as I am going out

          8  the door will be to recommend, either to sign the

          9  letter or to recommend signature of the letter,

         10  which will forward a new allocation formula to

         11  equalize this particular disparity which leads to on

         12  a per capita basis some districts getting $26 per

         13  child and other areas getting approximately $1.20

         14  per child. That is an equity issue that we had

         15  already addressed prior to the resolution or prior

         16  to the receipt of the audit from the Comptroller's

         17  Office.

         18                 So, let me assure you that I am

         19  extremely concerned about equity and we will make an

         20  appropriate decision.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Thank you,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you,

         24  Ms. Cruz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Could you share
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          2  with us, and I know that you talk about expanding,

          3  give me beacons, what do we do with areas that do

          4  not have beacons?

          5                 How are we going to address those

          6  youngsters in those areas?

          7                 I want to be able to go back, I want

          8  Annette Robinson, Council Member Robinson, everybody

          9  else to be able to say to their community-based

         10  groups, we are not going to fold up. Because I am

         11  going to tell you, there were so many, and you know,

         12  Commissioner, there were so many community-based

         13  groups during the time that the Administration

         14  withheld money were saying we have had to let go of

         15  staff, we have had to shut down, stop servicing all

         16  of our youth because we are not getting the funding.

         17  We want to be able to go back and tell them at this

         18  juncture we are not going to lose our programs.

         19                 And I know that you would be the

         20  person to give me an upfront answer, although I know

         21  everybody is a soldier and we take orders from a

         22  General, however, you would have that information

         23  more readily available, please share with us,

         24  Commissioner.

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't
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          2  anticipate that as a result of this reduction in the

          3  Mayor's January budget plan, proposed in the Mayor's

          4  January budget plan, that the subject of these

          5  particular hearings, that there will be any closures

          6  in any programs. There may be some reduction in

          7  services, I have costed it out for you, I have

          8  capitated that out for you, at approximately a loss

          9  of 80,000 slots.

         10                 What needs to be considered on the

         11  other side is that from a gross perspective, and I

         12  mean a very gross kind of looking at both sides of

         13  the scale, that will be minimally the offset by the

         14  increase in services. So, we are not losing any

         15  particular service, that is not the intent of this

         16  reduction, and we are still providing additional

         17  services through another system.

         18                 I think it is probably the best

         19  answer that I can give you at this particular

         20  moment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         22  Robles, and then I have a couple of clean-up

         23  questions and then we will be done.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman.
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          2                 Commissioner, it is good to see you.

          3  First let me say congratulations on your appointment

          4  as the new Commissioner of the Department of

          5  Homeless Services and I look forward to continuing

          6  to work with you as I have done in the past.

          7                 But the question I was going to ask

          8  you really was about something else, but I can't sit

          9  in this room and listen to my colleagues, knowing

         10  that the beacons, to be honest with you was a baby

         11  that I watched be born, nourished and what have you,

         12  and we started with ten original beacons and when I

         13  left clearly we had 41 beacons.

         14                 So, let me walk through, for my

         15  colleagues, and for the Chair, since you are right

         16  he was not a member of this Committee, but I try to

         17  enlighten him as much as I can, but I want to set

         18  the record straight, and there are certain things

         19  that have been said here, maybe it has changed, and

         20  if it has, then say it on record because then I have

         21  to begin to adjust myself to the new Department of

         22  Youth and Community Development because I was around

         23  when it was just the Department of Youth Services

         24  and then we merged with a clear understanding of

         25  which when the merger took place, it is the first
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          2  time that this Council and the Administration and

          3  the advocates were part of drafting the bill and

          4  writing the bill, and that is why I need to make

          5  sure that what I thought is in place, either is

          6  still in place or there has been some adjustment.

          7                 So, is it correct that December of

          8  '98, when I left to become Chairman of the Health

          9  Committee, in the budget there was an appropriation

         10  that will create and fund 41 beacons?

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, 40

         12  full, one mini.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Excuse me?

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Forty full

         15  beacons, one mini beacon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, no, let's

         17  go back because that mini, I thought we took care of

         18  it where --

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, we did.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: But the

         22  original allocation that year was 40 full beacons,

         23  one mini beacon.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right.

         25                 And that so-called one mini beacon
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          2  was really two mini beacons, because --

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right. Because

          5  the original beacon of Staten Island was in Council

          6  Member O'Donovan's district, then Council Member

          7  Fusco and Council Member, who is a Congressman now,

          8  Fossella, complained and then somehow, and I warned

          9  you, if you remember correctly I said I am not too

         10  thrilled with minis when we are dealing with

         11  beacons, but that is what you want, fine. And then

         12  we created two minis, one in Council Member

         13  Fossella's district and one in Council Member

         14  Fucso's district.

         15                 But again, by the time I graciously

         16  turned the helm over to my distinguished colleague

         17  in January, I believe that that was taken care of

         18  and my understanding is that there should have been

         19  41 full-time beacons. Now, that is my understanding.

         20  And so we understand how we got to the 41, because

         21  by the time from the Dinkins Administration to the

         22  Giuliani, in Fiscal Year '97, which is what I think

         23  the chair asked you and you answered, it is correct

         24  that the Administration proposed ten new beacons and

         25  the Council then added 18 additional beacons, which
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          2  gave us actually 28 new beacons in the Fiscal Year

          3  '97.

          4                 So, if you add the 41 with the ones

          5  that you added, whether you did or you did not, we

          6  should have had by the end of Fiscal Year '97, 69

          7  beacons. And let me tell you, the 23 beacons that

          8  were added by the Council, was exactly the complaint

          9  of Council members who said there are Council

         10  members who have zero beacons. But then I am told

         11  that there was a budget mod in Fiscal Year, in March

         12  of '98, which then added four new beacons, for those

         13  four Council districts, that somehow we overlook,

         14  because the intention of this Council and this

         15  leadership, and I was part of it and then Council

         16  Member Ken Fisher had to carry it out, was to have a

         17  beacon in 51 districts, even though there were more

         18  beacons in 51.

         19                 Last but not least, in the adoption

         20  of, if I remember correctly, and Council Member

         21  Fisher was the distinguished chair then, but I

         22  recall that then in the adoption of Fiscal Year '99,

         23  we added additional money of $134,000. We put it for

         24  four beacons, but because of the lateness or because

         25  it went in late or that last six months or
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          2  something, the total number was 134. There was $1.8

          3  million for four new beacons.

          4                 Now, I am just laying that out

          5  because clearly the intent of this Council, and the

          6  leadership, whether it was myself or Council Member

          7  Fisher through the Speaker's Office was to have

          8  every single Council Member whose district they

          9  represent have at least one beacon.

         10                 Now, I don't know why any Council

         11  member is saying there is no beacon in their

         12  district. But he is right, when the budget comes,

         13  let me be clear, my dear distinguished ranking

         14  member from when I was the Chair, a budget has been

         15  in place and dealt, proposed by the Mayor and we

         16  disposed it, and I have, in all of the years in the

         17  City of New York, I have never seen where we cut out

         18  a certain vested interest part of the budget so that

         19  you can vote, along with us, very clear. If we are

         20  committed to youth services, and we believe in a

         21  surplus year that we have a surplus year for the

         22  last two, three fiscal years, that the State of New

         23  York has a surplus year, and now the federal

         24  government not only is balancing their budget, but

         25  they want to know --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Victor, just

          3  to repeat: I do not have a beacon. I do not have a

          4  beacon.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Excuse me.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Point of

          7  order. I do not have a beacon.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Gentlemen,

          9  gentlemen, let's have some order.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I am just

         11  simply saying that we will get our opportunity,

         12  either we are for youth services or we are not, but

         13  then we will deal with it in the budget properly,

         14  and you are correct.

         15                 Let me then do one more thing,

         16  Commissioner. Because yesterday, I, as Chairman of

         17  the Health Committee, had oversight hearings, I mean

         18  budget hearings, and it was interesting to me, what

         19  I heard and I need a correction, Commissioner Neal

         20  Cohen, who wears two hats, because he is never going

         21  to get his merger like you did, because he has to

         22  learn how you did it and maybe we will get it, as

         23  the Commissioner of the Department of Mental Health,

         24  he reported to us yesterday that there is money

         25  appropriated within the Department of Mental Health
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          2  -- and Ken, I want you to listen to this, because

          3  Brooklyn allegedly is going to have two, but they

          4  didn't say where -- monies are being appropriated

          5  from the Department of Mental Health to select two

          6  beacons, and this is not only in Brooklyn, it is

          7  Citywide there are others, my understanding is that

          8  they will be using Department of Mental Health money

          9  in beacon schools; are you aware of that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, that

         11  has been a discussion that has been ongoing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: In the budget

         13  it is already in the plans.

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: For mental

         15  health, and on the health side.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Excuse me?

         17                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: On two

         18  sides.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, no, but

         20  here is my dilemma, which I have a problem with

         21  beacons: You pay for it, but the Board of Education

         22  decides where they go. You know that you and I have

         23  always had that argument before I gave it up. And

         24  with all due respect, and you are my friend, I love

         25  you dearly, I will never embarrass you, it still
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          2  works the same way. Because I understand that part

          3  of the beacons that we added where we -- it was the

          4  Council who said where they should go because the

          5  failure of the Board of Education sign-off, we now

          6  have to look at new places for those beacons; is

          7  that what you told me? So they still have a

          8  tremendous say on beacons.

          9                 Here is my dilemma: Discussion. He is

         10  the Chairman of Youth Services, I am the Chairman of

         11  Health, okay? All I know is, and since I only

         12  concentrate in Brooklyn since I am parochial, one,

         13  has there been any selection of the beacons in

         14  Brooklyn on where they are going?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: You mean

         16  additional beacons?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, no, no,

         18  sir. Let me tell you what I have a dilemma, which

         19  goes back to the question of cuts.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I think he was

         21  asking the beacons that were going to receive these

         22  mental health funds, have those been designated yet?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We have

         24  participated with the Department of Health --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Mental Health.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Mental

          3  Health. And we are aware that they have particular

          4  criteria that they want to apply.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We are not

          7  aware that they selected particular sites.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: No, no, no.

          9  You see, the Commissioner told me that that is a

         10  decision you as Commissioner of Youth will -- they

         11  are working with you --

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, they

         13  are.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Sir, sir. You

         15  are my friend, please. I am just now using my role

         16  as Chairman of the Health Committee. I am not

         17  against it, I am for it. I don't like favoritism. I

         18  mean, because in Brooklyn North where I come from, I

         19  need those mental health -- especially for

         20  adolescents I need mental health.

         21                 Question: Is it correct that in this

         22  plan within the Department of Mental Health there

         23  will be an appropriation of funds to be used at

         24  beacon schools, to be selected, which beacon schools

         25  will have them; the question is, has that decision
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          2  been made?

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No. That

          4  decision has not been made. We have discussed the

          5  number.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay. Will

          7  that decision be made before or during the

          8  negotiation so that when we vote upon the plan or

          9  the budget, that I, as Chairman of the Health

         10  Committee which oversees the Department of Mental

         11  Health, which the money is, and the Chairman of the

         12  Youth Service Committee, where the beacons happen to

         13  be, will we know exactly what was the criterias and

         14  how -- and is it only two or is this more than two?

         15  The discussions were two or more than two?

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The

         17  discussions that we have had, which have been very,

         18  very preliminary discussions, which talked about

         19  criteria and a process to get to this, I had just

         20  been to --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH:  The

         23  particular criteria as far as I know have not yet

         24  been applied by the Department of Mental Health to

         25  select the areas.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: So it is two.

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes. And of

          4  course we will --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Well, let me

          6  say this --

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Dr. Cohen,

          8  under his responsibility and I under my reporting

          9  responsibility, we will report to the oversight

         10  committees.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I hope so. Mr.

         12  Chairman, let me just point for the record, which is

         13  what I thought I was going to hear, and I am still

         14  taking you out to lunch, you are my friend -- I am

         15  telling you, Mr. Chairman, in case you are not aware

         16  of it, that two beacons in Brooklyn will be selected

         17  for the purpose of mental health services. You are

         18  from Brooklyn, I am from Brooklyn. I am not going to

         19  pick the schools, but I am not signing off on any

         20  appropriation of funds in the Department of Mental

         21  Health that there is no communication with this

         22  chair. That is how I operated when I was a Youth

         23  Services Committee Chair, and I say this

         24  respectfully. It will be   very embarrassing to you

         25  and I, both from Brooklyn, and here they already
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          2  have been talking and have been discussion about

          3  beacons, and I am not aware of it.

          4                 Commissioner, let me ask you one more

          5  thing. Let me go back to the subject of Margarita

          6  Lopez, Council Member, because this is an area that

          7  is not new, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 There were beacons that leaked from

          9  additional resources, services and money that

         10  enhanced the services of the beacon school, that not

         11  whether it was ten or 41, had similar benefits; and

         12  what were they? They were CBOs that provided certain

         13  state match, that if we went into a beacon and there

         14  was a service rendered, that they would also get

         15  state matching; are you aware of that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, I am

         17  not aware of that particular matching arrangement.

         18  But I can find out more about it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Commissioner

         20  Mitchell can be aware of it, because I don't

         21  remember the name of it, but somehow there were

         22  beacons who were tapping into state funds for a

         23  certain service they were providing and they went

         24  into the beacons to enhance the program. That is not

         25  the original $400,000, nor later on when there was
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          2  cuts into the beacons budgets, the --

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The

          4  preventive services money?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay,

          6  preventive services, right. Is that correct?

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

          9                 My question is: In those beacons that

         10  the discussion was taking place --

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Are any of

         13  those beacons that tap into matching funds, are the

         14  ones that we were discussing about cuts?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I don't

         16  believe so.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now I am being

         18  told, in fairness to you, and I appreciate it, and

         19  again I want to just raise it to you because I want

         20  to be helpful, which is correct, that money was

         21  never in your budget.

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: It was in the

         24  Children's Services.

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: And I am

          3  telling you that I am told that in the plan, those

          4  monies are being cut. So, which means that if you

          5  don't have the money which then taps into the state

          6  for a match, then Mr. Chairman, that is correct,

          7  there will be cuts into the beacon. Never mind the

          8  baseline, I am talking about, I always love people

          9  that say partnership. Well, here is a good

         10  partnership that we can reap from a little

         11  investment, gives us money from the state, and I am

         12  telling you, Mr. Chairman, in this plan, services

         13  that were at beacons that came through the

         14  Children's Services Agency, are eliminated from that

         15  budget, meaning that we will lose state match funds

         16  to provide preventive services -- thank you,

         17  Commissioner, that is the name -- and I just wanted

         18  to raise that for your information.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you,

         20  Council Member.

         21                 Council Member Michels had a question

         22  about the beacon program and then I want to ask one

         23  or two questions, but I do want to remind my

         24  colleagues that Commissioner Hernandez is going to

         25  be testifying and then there are a number of people
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          2  from the public who have indicated their desire to

          3  testify as well.

          4                 Council Member.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chairman.

          7                 Commissioner, it is nice to see you.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Commissioner,

         10  as the King and I, I am in a puzzlement here. The

         11  fact is Fiscal Year '98 you selected, not me, you

         12  selected IS 164 Junior High School to be a beacon

         13  school, an RFP was issued, there was many responses

         14  to the RFP, money was put in, and what happened?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: What

         16  happened was that after we looked at the scoring, we

         17  noticed there were particular problems with the

         18  scoring and we through out the result of the

         19  process.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What scoring?

         21  Of the RFP?

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Of the

         23  scoring of the RFP or responses. They were, I

         24  believe there were only six response. I might be

         25  wrong on that but there were approximately six
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          2  responses from organizations who wanted to do

          3  business in IS 164 as the beacon operator.

          4                 Once we got all of the reviews back,

          5  we then take all of the reviews, we average them and

          6  arrive at a final score.

          7                 When we did that, we noticed that

          8  there was a particular subject, a particular pattern

          9  of scoring which when we looked at it further we

         10  were not comfortable with, and what we decided to do

         11  was, since there were a number of schools, we were

         12  also going through a rebid process, i.e. I.S. 210

         13  which was originally proposed for one school and had

         14  to be moved to another school. Similarly in Queens I

         15  think there was a school that --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So what did

         17  you decide to do?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: What we

         19  decided to do was make them part of a

         20  resolicitation. That resolicitation is presently at

         21  the Mayor's Office of Contracts for review.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are we still

         23  going to get a beacon school?

         24                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: You are

         25  absolutely going to get a beacon in I.S. 164.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is

          3  Fiscal '98 and it has taken so long?

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can you tell

          6  us anything more about the incorrect pattern?

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No. In the

          8  judgment of my procurement people it was a

          9  particularly egregious issue.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Just in this

         11  school or for all of those schools?

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, only in

         13  that one school.

         14                 In another school the issue was that

         15  although we had two solid respondents, neither one

         16  of the responses totaled a minimum mark of 70

         17  points, so although we had a clear winner in that

         18  school, we felt that we should resolicit for that

         19  particular school.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Was it a

         21  problem with the RFP or was it a problem with the

         22  scoring?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It was a

         24  problem with how scoring, how the scoring

         25  instructions were interpreted.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: By who? By

          3  the RFP?

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: By one of

          5  these scorers. We had four scorers on that.

          6                 In this particular -- let me not get

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I wanted to

          9  know whose fault it was, that's all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member,

         11  maybe, since we are trying to focus on the budget,

         12  maybe you and the Commissioner can meet.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Can I get a

         14  private explanation on this?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes,

         16  absolutely. I will be happy to get a private

         17  explanation.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner, I

         21  just want to make two observations to you before we

         22  thank you for your testimony today and move on to

         23  the other portion of our hearing.

         24                 First of all, I am going to be --

         25  with respect to the fair share allocation issue,
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          2  just so you know, I am going to be advocating to

          3  leadership on this issue that we hold the Community

          4  Boards harmless that would lose funds under the

          5  various formulas that have been identified as

          6  alternatives to the present situation. I don't think

          7  we should be punishing neighborhoods because they

          8  have successful youth programs or their strategies

          9  of work, if there are neighborhoods that require

         10  additional services, I think that they should get

         11  them, but not at the expense of other neighborhoods.

         12                 And while I have not yet had a chance

         13  to discuss this with leadership, I suspect that they

         14  are going to be of that view as well, and you should

         15  be anticipating that.

         16                 Secondly, I can't help but express my

         17  concern, that the fact of the matter is that the

         18  total budget for youth delinquency prevention

         19  programs is $16.8 million and the proposed cut is

         20  $8.5 million; do we have the right numbers? We are

         21  talking about the same numbers, Commissioner? You

         22  are talking about a very substantial cut to YDDP.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, I

         24  believe those are the right numbers.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And it is about
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          2  20 percent of all of the City tax levy dollars for

          3  all youth programs is reflected in this plan as

          4  well. And you know, I think the problem that I have,

          5  Commissioner, is that while the New York Times

          6  editorial page described this as a cynical ploy by

          7  the Mayor as a negotiating tactic for the Council, I

          8  believe the Mayor. I take the Mayor at his word, and

          9  if the Mayor says he wants to cut these programs, I

         10  believe that he really wants to cut these programs.

         11                 Last year when we went into the

         12  budget fight and people cynically ascribed to the

         13  Mayor that he was trying to sabotage Peter Vallone's

         14  Campaign for Governor by impounding the funds that

         15  we had in the budget that we adopted over the

         16  Mayor's veto, I didn't think it was a cynical

         17  political ploy by the Mayor, I thought the Mayor

         18  didn't genuinely want to spend that money. And I

         19  hope I am wrong. I hope it turns out to be nothing

         20  more than a cynical ploy.

         21                 But in the meantime, what we have

         22  succeeded in doing is once again demoralizing the

         23  thousands of people who work in these programs and

         24  the hundreds of thousands of families that depend on

         25  them.
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          2                 So, I know that you didn't step up to

          3  the plate and volunteer to OMB to have your left and

          4  your right arms cut off, I hope you will take back

          5  to the Administration the notion that they do, if

          6  this is in fact a cynical ploy, that they do a

          7  disservice to everybody that is involved and if it

          8  is not a cynical ploy but a genuine attempt to cut

          9  youth services funding, that the Council will resist

         10  that to whatever extent that we can.

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 And again let me state what a

         14  pleasure it has been to work with this Committee and

         15  its staff. You have a very competent and

         16  knowledgeable staff. It has been probably the best

         17  32 months of my life, I hope my wife doesn't hear

         18  that, professional life, absolutely correct. And I

         19  look forward to working with individuals as I assume

         20  my new responsibilities at the Department of

         21  Homeless Services.

         22                 Again, I thank you all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I think,

         24  Commissioner, for all the members of the Committee,

         25  regardless of the volume level of our questions and
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          2  comments, I think unanimously the Committee

          3  appreciates the work that you have done. You are a

          4  first rate professional and we wish you all the best

          5  in your new position.

          6                 We are going to take a two-minute

          7  recess, Commissioner Hernandez will be here

          8  momentarily and we are going to pick up the

          9  Department of Juvenile Justice portion of the

         10  hearings.

         11                 Two-minute recess.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 3:50 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of March 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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